
TOWN OF WOODBURY 
281 Main Street South 

Woodbury, Connecticut 06798-0369 
(203)263-3467 - www.woodburyct.org  

First land deed from the Indians 

April 12th 1659 

 

TROLLEY BED PLANNING COMMITTEE 
SPECIAL MEETING 

MINUTES 
Monday, May 23, 2016 

7:00 p.m., Park and Rec House 

Members Attending: 
Nancy Bailey 	Terri Hale 

	
Dave Taylor 
	

Chris Wood 
Tom Ecsedy 	Ron Taurik 

	
Bob Travers 

Also attending: J. Serota, J. Miller, B. Perkinson, K. Doyle, D. Leavenworth, T. Warner, R. Walker. 

Meeting called to order at 7:02 p.m. All members were seated, a quorum was established. Chairman 
Travers referenced Section 8-21 of Connecticut General Statutes and Section 921 of the Town 
Charter, Conflict of Interest. 

PRESENTATION BY JOEL SEROTA — Mr. Serota. who served as Chair of the Reservoir Task 
Force, gave a presentation about potential equestrian uses at the property. He began with an 
explanation of the State statute regarding liability. He said the larger property could be used for trail 
riding as well as serving as a connector to other horse riding properties. His recommendation would 
be to use trails that are to the eastern side of the upper trolley bed, being careful to plan trails that 
were safe for horses while also avoiding wetland areas and main walking areas. He said he 
estimates a loop would represent about a 20-minute ride if trotting. Mr. Serota said he felt confident 
that volunteers interested in equine activity would provide the labor to clear the pathways. He said he 
would not expect a lot of horse trailer parking needs, as it is a relatively small property and some 
people would ride in from other properties. He said he would like to see small metal placards to mark 
horse-accessible trails. Chairman Travers asked if Mr. Serota would recommend allowing riding on 
the smaller parcel. Mr. Serota said there could possibly be riding there also, which could continue 
onto Flanders land if trail areas were approved by Flanders. Several members asked if there is 
currently horseback riding on the Whittemore property; most thought no. C. Wood asked about the 
condition of the back trails; Mr. Serota said they are narrow walking trails. C. Wood asked how they 
were developed; D. Leavenworth answered that they were mostly made by trespassing activity. T. 
Ecsedy asked for more information on how trails would connect, for example, up to Bethlehem as Mr. 
Serota said. Mr. Serota answered it would mostly connect into Southbury. T. Hale asked who the 
volunteer group was that would maintain the trails; Mr. Serota answered that he was referring to 
private citizens who were interested in riding. D. Taylor said that the ERT report maps out sensitive 
areas of the property, and asked if that information had been overlaid on the trail map to see if those 
areas were in planned riding areas; Mr. Serota said it had not yet been done. D. Taylor asked who 
would make decisions on trail routes if sensitive areas had to be avoided. J. Serota said he would 
likely first approach Park and Rec, but the decision would be the Board of Selectmen's. R. Walker, a 
South Brook resident, asked if they would be able to comment on uses, since the part closest to 
Middle Quarter Road is owned by their association with a right-of-way to the Town. Chairman 
Travers said all meetings are open and properly noticed to the public, with privilege of the floor for 



Linda G. Kaelin, Clerk 

ECE1VED FOR 

. 	 Respectfully Submitted, 
FTEST 

OWN CLERK 002,7L7,Y GLUT 

any resident. R. Taurik asked if we are aware of any restrictions from the DEEP grant. Chairman 
Travers said he is trying to get that information. 

PRESENTATION BY JENIFER MILLER — Parks and Rec Director Jenifer Miller presented her 
thoughts on practical matters that the Town should think about with a new "park". She would like to 
see the following: a survey of the property; a review of what structures are there and what liabilities 
exist (even if some structures are owned still by Aquarion); plans for what signage is necessary for 
safety (certainly at the upper road entrance, possibly at the lower); trash collection plans (at both 
entrances only); parking that is low-maintenance and demarcated; good maps; blazes on trails; 
occasional benches. She asked committee members to think of maintenance whenever planning. 
She also noted that tree health assessment and tree removal for safety will be necessary. 
Summarizing, Ms. Miller said her ideas for activities that require no expense would be walking, 
snowshoeing, fishing, mountain biking and birding. Activities with a small expenditure could include 
orienteering programs, cross-country running/trail running/mudding, nature photography classes, 
snowshoe touring. With more supervision there could be cross-country meets or events, and 
prohibited would be engines. C. Wood asked if the proposed $50,000 amount set aside by Aquarion 
as part of the sale would be an endowment or for current use. D. Taylor said it is for maintenance, 
now or later. D. Leavenworth said there may be additional grant money COG may be able to assist in 
applying for. C. Wood noted that recommendations for use would have to be in the context of cost 
and money available. B. Travers said some things could be recommended as future uses dependent 
on acquiring future funding. N. Bailey asked for comparison how many cars could park at Three 
Rivers Park. Ms. Miller said that at the walking trail section, about 12 cars could park at Jack's Bridge 
Road and 2 at Judson. C. Wood noted that leash laws apply at all parks, but many dogs run off leash 
at Three Rivers; Ms. Miller said there is enforcement, and she will review priorities. 

CALENDAR ADJUSTMENTS — Meeting dates around holidays were discussed; it was agreed that 
no meeting would be scheduled for Columbus Day and the day after Christmas. Special meetings 
can be called as necessary. 

VICE-CHAIR — Chairman Travers said that C. Wood has agreed to Vice-Chair. Unanimously agreed. 

SITE WALK SCHEDULE — The group will walk the property on Sunday, June 5 at 9 am. This will be 
noticed as a special meeting. Mr. Walker suggested walking through to look at the Middle Quarter 
Road intersection at the bridge, as the bridge may be rebuilt and could affect the trail head. 
Selectman Perkinson recommended getting prior permission from Aquarion. 

MEMBERS' TIME — Lists of activities were distributed by members and discussed. Lists will be filed 
with all Committee materials in the Town Planner's Office. 

CORRESPONDENCE — Copies of the DEEP grant application, the Town Parks ordinance and a 
ietter from Kathy Doyle were distributed. There were no submissions to the public e-mail site. 

MINUTES — R. Taurik moved to accept the minutes; D. Taylor seconded. Unanimously accepted. 

PRIVILEGE OF THE FLOOR — none. 

ADJOURNMENT- C. Wood moved to adjourn, 2nd by D. Taylor. Meeting adjourned at 8:28 p.m. 


	Page 1
	Page 2

